ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE

HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES

STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 7, 2002
3:03 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Fred Dyson, Chair
Representati ve John Coghil |
Representative Gary Stevens
Representative Vic Kohring
Representati ve Sharon Ci ssna

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Peggy WIlson, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Representati ve Jeannette Janes
COW TTEE CALENDAR
HOUSE BI LL NO 464
"An Act relating to statewi de school district
study prograns.”
- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BlILL: HB 464

SHORT TI TLE: SCHOOL DI STRI CT CORRESPONDENCE STUDY
SPONSOR( S): REPRESENTATI VE( S) JAMVES

corr espondence

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

02/ 19/ 02 2313 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

02/ 19/ 02 2313 (H EDU, HES

02/ 19/ 02 2313 (H REFERRED TO EDUCATI ON

02/ 22/ 02 2370 (H COSPONSOR( S) : DYSON

02/ 27/ 02 2416 (H REFERRALS CHANGED TO HES, EDU

02/ 27/ 02 2416 (H) REFERRED TO HES

03/07/02 (H HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -1-

March 7, 2002



W TNESS REG STER

Rl CHARD SCHM TZ, Staff

to Representative Jeannette Janes

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 214

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 464 on behalf of its sponsor,
Representative Janes.

ED McLAIN, Ph.D., Deputy Comm ssioner of Education

Department of Education and Early Devel opnent (EED)

801 West Tenth Street, Suite 320

Juneau, Al aska 99801-1894

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During hearing on HB 464, answered
guestions pertaining to | anguage in statutes.

ART GRI SWOLD

HC 60, Box 4493

Delta Junction, Al aska 99737

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 464.

WANDA FULTON

P. 0. Box 522

DiIlingham Al aska 99576

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 464, Version O

LI NDA G LES

297 | cehouse Lane

Ket chi kan, Al aska 99901

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 464, Version O

A. PARKER

P. 0. Box 1462

Sterling, Alaska 99672

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 464.

DONNA CLAUS

P. O Box 109

Chitina, Alaska 99566

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 464, Version O

LORRAI NE HAMBRI CK

P. O Box 520180
Bi g Lake, Al aska 99652

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 2- March 7, 2002



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During hearing on HB 464, expressed her
opposition to proposed regulations pertaining to home schoo
prograns. Testified in support of the bill.

BEN PHI LLI PS

P. O Box 2157

Pet ersburg, Al aska 99833

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During hearing on HB 464, testified in
opposition to proposed regulations pertaining to hone schoo
correspondence prograns.

CARCL SI MPSON

448 Kl ondi ke Avenue

Homer, Al aska 99603

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 464, Version O

JI' M BAI RD

1358 Vi ewpoint Drive

Fai r banks, Al aska 99709

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Testified in support of the current wording
of HB 464.

STACI E WARNER

P. O, Box 3495

Seward, Al aska 99664

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 464.

KELLY LARSON

P. O Box 875462

Wasilla, Al aska 99687

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 464.

KATHY VANDER ZWAAG

HC 60, Box 3280

Delta Junction, Al aska 99737

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During hearing on HB 464, testified in
opposition to proposed regulations pertaining to statew de
correspondence prograns.

GLEN BI EGEL

5957 Barry Avenue

Anchor age, Al aska 99507

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During hearing on HB 464, delineated
potential negative effects of proposed regulations pertaining to
home school prograns.

G NA CREEDON

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 3- March 7, 2002



P. 0. Box 15053
Fritz Creek, Al aska 99603
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 464.

GAYE WRI GHT

4687 Chena Hot Springs Road

Fai r banks, Al aska 99712

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 464, Version O

CATHERI NE BI SHOP

P. O, Box 2986

Seward, Al aska 99664

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 464.

SHARYLEE ZACHARY

P. 0. Box 1531

Pet er sburg, Al aska 99833

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 464.

DANI ELLE BACHVAN

HC 05, Box 9964U

Pal mer, Al aska 99645

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 464.

LI LLI AN CONNOR

P. O. Box 15053

Fritz Creek, Al aska 99603

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During hearing on HB 464, testified about
her ease in taking tests as a honme school ed student.

M KE PRAX

1015 Meadow Rue

North Pol e, Al aska 99705

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During hearing on HB 464, testified in
opposition to proposed EED regul ati ons.

AWY PI TZER

P. 0. Box 791

Delta Junction, Al aska 99737

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During hearing on HB 464, testified in
opposition to greater regulation of hone school prograns.

SHARI LEW S

P. 0. Box 1205

Pet ersburg, Al aska 99833

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 464, Version O

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -4- March 7, 2002



LAUREN BACHVAN

HC 05, Box 9964U

Pal mer, Al aska 99645

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 464.

GREG MERCHANT

P. O Box 15426

Fritz Creek, Alaska 99603

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During hearing on HB 464,
concurrence with testinony of other wtnesses.

FLOYD WRI GHT

4687 Chena Hot Springs Road

Fai r banks, Al aska 99712

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 464.

AVANDA MERCHANT

P. O Box 15426

Fritz Creek, Alaska 99603

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 464.

JENNI FER BACHVAN

HC 05, Box 9964U

Pal mer, Al aska 99645

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 464.

BARBARA MARTI NEZ

3875 Cei st Road, Nunber 164

Fai r banks, Al aska 99709

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 464.

M CHELE PFUNDT
P. 0. Box 1162
Pet ersburg, Al aska 99833

expressed

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 464, Version O

DAN M ELKE

HC 30, Box 12910

Wasilla, Alaska 99654

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 464.

JENNI FER DELZER

436 Droz Drive

Fai r banks, Al aska 99701

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 464.

DEB GERVANO

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 5- March 7, 2002



P. O Box 1511

Honmer, Al aska 99603

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  During hearing on HB 464, expressed support
for parental choice and state standards, but raised concern
about issues pertaining to school districts.

JOHN PORTSCHELLER

Tok, Al aska 99780

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  During hearing on HB 464, expressed concern
that the bill fails to address the broader issue of EED s
efforts to extend its purview.

M CHAEL DAMMVEYER

3351 Lucille Street

Wasilla, Alaska 99654

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Expressed support for HB 464.

JULI A AUBREY

P. O. Box 58648

Fai r banks, Al aska 99711

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 464.

HOLLY HALVERSON

669 Fl orence

North Pol e, Alaska 99705

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on HB 464, offering her own
experi ence.

JOAN DANGELI

P. O Box 34711

Juneau, Al aska 99803

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed support for HB 464, but raised
concern that it mght not address all the regulations proposed
by EED.

KEI TH SIM LA

3492 Meander \Way

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During hearing on HB 464, expressed
appreci ati on and suggested it perhaps could be strengthened.

PAVELA EBERHARDT

2343 Kevin Court

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 464, Version O

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 6- March 7, 2002



TAPE 02-20, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAIR FRED DYSON called the House Health, Education and Soci al
Services Standing Commttee neeting to order at 3:03 p.m
Representatives Dyson, Coghi | I, Stevens, and Kohring were
present at the call to order. Representative Cissna arrived as
the neeting was in progress.

HB 464- SCHOOL DI STRI CT CORRESPONDENCE STUDY

CHAI R DYSON announced that the conmttee would hear HOUSE BILL
NO. 464, "An Act relating to statewide school district
correspondence study prograns.”

Number 0213
REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS noved to adopt version 22-1LS1494\0O Ford,

3/4/ 02, as a work draft. There being no objection, Version O
was before the commttee.

Number 0249

RI CHARD SCHM TZ, Staff to Representative Jeannette Janes, Al aska
State Legislature, presented [Version ( on behal f of
Representative Janes, sponsor. He noted that Representative

Janes's office has received a nunmber of e-mails, faxes, and
letters from parents of children enrolled in statewde

correspondence school s. These schools are unique in that they
are correspondence "cyber" schools that work around the state
but are run by one district. He said these seem to have

af forded parents a great deal of satisfaction and success in the
few years they've been in operation, and they're very popul ar.
He referenced new regulations proposed by the Departnent of
Education and Early Devel opnent (EED) that al arned many of these
home school parents. He explained that this |egislation seeks
to clarify and "set in stone"” principles to direct the operation
of statew de correspondence school s.

Number 0339

MR SCHM TZ offered that the overriding principle behind this
| egislation is that parents should have the greatest degree of
authority to educate their own children. Accountability [for
the education of these children] is necessary because state
noney is being spent; this accountability is available through

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -7- March 7, 2002



statewi de testing. He explained that provided these test
results are wthin the state averages, and not below, the
prograns would be viewed as being in conpliance with state
statute.

MR SCHM TZ referred to line 9 of the bill and said the current
statute calls for review of these schools every ten years. The
new regulations call for annual approval. Conpl aints were
received that indicated this requirement would be burdensone.
He noted that charter schools are approved every ten years.
This ten-year approval would not apply to schools that fel

bel ow the state average [test scores] for two consecutive years.

MR SCHM TZ reported that [Version (O changes the |anguage
slightly [from the original version] to identify these schools
as "at-risk" under state statute, requiring nore frequent
approval . If the program was performng at or above the state
average, it would be reviewed every ten years. He offered that
this would be aligned with the call for government to do things

"faster, better, cheaper."” "These prograns seemto do that," he
said. "They deliver education to children very successfully for
a lot less cost - or at |least sone |less cost - than they would
be in a traditional program " "The other thing that
Representative Janes feels strongly about is that ... not every
child learns the sane way," he said. This is another option.
He alluded to the nmany new educational prograns avail able; sone
of these work and sone don't. He said statew de correspondence
prograns seemto be "working very well."” He concluded, "If it's

not broken, they why fix it?"

Nunmber 0518

MR. SCHM TZ drew attention to another provision in the proposed
EED regulations that Version O addresses. School districts
should have a great deal of authority to determ ne whether
parents are neeting district requirenents. "Cbviously, you
don't hand out stuff and then, ... in four years, hand them a
di ploma,” he said. Sone parents need nore frequent contact with
the district than others. [Version O gives the authority to

districts to determne the frequency of contact wth parents.
"As long as they're passing their Benchmark exans, then there
shoul dn't be a problem™ he stated.

MR SCHM TZ reported that curriculum materials and religious
materials had been an issue raised [in feedback received].
Currently, programs prohibit the purchase of religious materials
with school district funds; the materials actually used in hone

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 8- March 7, 2002



school prograns are not [mandated by districts]. The new
regul ati ons appeared to say, he suggested, that religious
materials could not be used. He referred to AS 14.03 and said
everyone knows about it, and that it defines religious material.

MR SCHM TZ said these honme schools are public because they
receive public funding. He offered the analogy of a traditiona

public school st udent conpleting homework at hone: no
restrictions are placed on the materials used by the student at
hone. "If there's a crucifix on the wall in the hone, that
isn't the state's business,” he said. Some work performed by

traditional public school students is done at hone; all of the
work by these correspondence school students is conpleted at

home. "The honme is still the same,"” he stated. "That's sacred,
and ... what goes on within the home ... should be up to the
parent that's doing the teaching.” He added that a check is in

pl ace: students are passing the exanms and showi ng that they are
conpleting the required work. The materials being used should
not be an issue, he said, adding that no one is requiring public
schools to purchase religious materials. But if a parent
chooses to use religious materials [that should be permtted].
He pointed out a letter received by his office from Joan Dangel
that recounts her experience with a math curricul um she used for
two years without realizing it was religious in nature.

Number 0755

CHAIR DYSON said, "Your point is, then, the departnment ruled
that that was illegal."

MR SCHM TZ replied that M. Dangeli's letter indicated this
program used by the Nenana [ CyberLynx Correspondence School] was
ruled to be religious. He said the way to prevent public
schools from having to determne which materials are religious
is to allow parents to make that deci sion. He said this is the
goal of HB 464.

Number 0765
CHAIR DYSON said, "As | read vyour bill, it nakes those
determnations at a district level instead of a departnent
| evel . You just said you wanted it to be at a parent level. Am
| confused?"

MR SCHM TZ replied, "You're right. And | was probably ranting
a little bit." He said that the determnation would be at a
district |evel. He offered that this determ nation should be

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 9- March 7, 2002



made at a district |evel because the local district is nore
famliar with each famly, and it becones like "a famly
relationship.” He noted that districts can follow state statute
to place appropriate restrictions wthout constant oversight
from Juneau.

Nunber 0821

CHAIR DYSON inquired about the significance of subsection (b)
[ page 2 of Version Q.

MR SCHM TZ responded that the drafter added this |anguage,
which has to do with the |anguage set in statute to clarify what
schools are being addressed by the bill. In further response,
he expressed his understanding that this does not apply, for
exanple, to the Juneau School District's correspondence program
whi ch serves only students in the Juneau School District.

Nunmber 0868

CHAI R DYSON asked, "'Statew de school district’' wouldn't apply
to the Juneau one that just takes kid within [the] district?"

MR SCHM TZ replied that the bill isn't designed to apply to
[this type of correspondence school]. He suggested that
Interior D stance Education of Alaska (IDEA) or EED personnel
m ght explain the difference between the two types of prograns
nore clearly.

CHAI R DYSON asked if the two type of prograns would be treated
differently under Version O

MR, SCHM TZ answered that the bill is not designed to address
"cyber" prograns within a district. It is designed to address
district prograns offered to children all over the state.

CHAIR DYSON said, "But they would still only be adm nistered
under your bill by the school district in which the school
resi des. "

MR. SCHM TZ agr eed.
Nunber 0941

CHAI R DYSON asked what "partisan" neans in AS 14. 03. 090.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -10- March 7, 2002



ED McLAIN, Ph.D., Deputy Conm ssioner of Education, Departnent
of Education and Early Devel opnent, expressed his understanding
that "partisan” refers to a political definition. He said he
woul d check this with |egal counsel. In further response, he
said a social studies teacher could, for exanple, use literature
froma political canpaign for instructional purposes. Pronoting
one political position over another is not permtted, however.

Nunber 1025

CHAIR DYSON inquired what "sex bias"™ nmeans in AS 14.18. 060,
which read in part:

Sec. 14.18. 060. Discrimnation in textbooks and
instructional materials prohibited.
(a) School boards shall have textbooks and

instructional nmaterials reviewed for evidence of sex
bias in accordance wth AS 14.08.111(9) and AS
14.14.090(7). School boards shall wuse educationally
sound, unbi ased texts and ot her i nstructional
materials as they becone avail able. Nothing in this
section prohibits use of literary works.

(b) The board shall establish by regulation

st andar ds for nondi scri m natory t ext books and
educat i onal mat eri al s. Each school board shall
provide training for all its certificated personnel in
the identification and recognition of sex-biased
mat eri al s.

DR MLAIN offered his understanding that this addresses
instructional materials' portrayal of preferences or stereotypes
of sex roles - for exanple, all workers in a factory shown as
men or all people shown at hone as wonen. Both sexes should be
represented in a variety of roles.

CHAI R DYSON continued, "So that doesn't prohibit materials that
m ght be, say, abstinence-based?"

DR. McLAIN replied, "I would not read that as to be abstinence-
based.” He offered to get an attorney's opinion.

CHAI R DYSON asked, "So ... 'sex bias' just neans [a] preference
of females over males or nmales over fenmales. It doesn't have to
do with lifestyles, ... nunber of marriages, ... nmarriage
partners, ... abstinence, prom scuity, or anything |Iike that?"

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -11- March 7, 2002



DR MLAIN said he would seek a definitive answer on that
matter, but that his own reading would be the sanme as
Representati ve Dyson's.

Number 1155

ART CGRISWOLD testified via tel econference. An Al askan resident
since the 1950s, M. Giswld said he has eight children, three
in a hone school program He encouraged nenbers to view HB 464
positively because it provides stability to the honme school
system The [provision for ten-year review] allows prograns to

build prograns with |ongevity. He noted that he'd taken his
children out of public schools because they were not
acconplishing "what they wanted to do." Hi s daughter, a high
school student, was not offered the variety of courses in the
public school that the honme school program offered. These
courses included auto nechanics, conmunication, journalism
aerospace, and her regular courses. He offered that his

daughter has a higher grade point average (GPA) in the hone
school program than she did in the high school in Delta. She
has taken and passed the high school equival ency exam He al so
has two sons with simlar experiences. He expressed his support
for Representative Janes's bill

Nunmber 1296

WANDA FULTON testified via teleconference in support of HB 464
[ Version Q. Noting that she is with the |IDEA program Ms.
Ful ton added that she supports the state's role in establishing
standards for high school graduates. She al so conveyed concern
with regulations that restrict the curriculum allowed to hone
school i ng parents.

Nunber 1342

LI NDA G LES testified via tel econference. A honme school nother
of two children, she expressed her support of HB 464 [Version

g.
Nunber 1373

A. PARKER testified via teleconference. She expressed her
support for HB 464 and concurred with Ms. Fulton's testinony.

Nunber 1394

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -12- March 7, 2002



DONNA CLAUS testified via teleconference. A hone school parent

for 12 years, she said, "Until |DEA cane along, | was sort of a
|l one ranger. W live 180 mles fromthe nearest school. ... W
woul d hone school even if we lived in the city." Her children

have won nunerous awards in Al aska and nationally, she offered.
He famly is planning a two-nonth trip to Antarctica via their
own plane to teach science, geography, and other subjects. She
noted that wthout the IDEA program this type of experience
woul d not be possible. She expressed her support for HB 464
[Version (.

Nunber 1444

LORRAI NE HAMBRI CK testified via tel econference in support of the
bill. She stated that she is opposed to regulations [proposed
by EED], particularly the proposed regulation of curriculum

She noted that home schoolers' test scores indicate they are
neeting the standards. She has been a certified teacher for 15
years and a honme school teacher for 13 years. The |DEA program
allows parents to choose appropriate curricula; her children
take Tae Kwan Do and nusic prograns. She said she nmakes efforts
to save the state noney given to her to honme school. She added
that she thinks the regulations are unfair to target honme school

children who don't participate in state tests; public-schoo

children who miss testing are not excluded from public school

the follow ng year. Ms. Hanbrick said honme school parents
sacrifice time and noney to hone school their children. She
gave several exanples of creative teaching nethods she has used
to teach concepts to her students; these nmethods were created
usi ng knowl edge of the individual student.

Nunber 1575
BEN PHI LLIPS testified via tel econference. The father of seven

children enrolled in the Galena school system he noted his
di ssatisfaction with the proposed EED regulations pertaining to

home school prograns. These regulations would cost the Galena
School District nore in admnistration costs; the state would
pay nore in admnistration costs as well. He expressed his

opinion that these regulations attenpt to control not reading,
witing, and math, but parents' teaching of religion in the
hone. Participants in the Galena program "are keenly aware" of
the prohibition of the purchase of religious materials wth
state nmoney; this is currently well policed, he added. He said,
"If the state board of education would be willing to apply the
sanme degree of potency to their own progranms, ... not only would
the ... other state schools not be facing noney problens, but

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -13- March 7, 2002



these frivolous regulations wuld never have even been

proposed. " He offered that honme school parents are well aware
of AS 14.03.090, which addresses partisan, sectarian, and
denom national instruction. He concluded by saying, "W just

think it's thinly veiled discrimnation."
Nunmber 1685

CAROL SIMPSON testified via teleconference, noting that she
works for the IDEA program as a field representative and an
adm ni strative assistant. Ms. Sinpson said she has been hone
schooling for nmany years; nmany of these years were as an
i ndependent hone school teacher, and five years have been wth
the |1 DEA program She said the regul ations proposed by EED go
wel | beyond the scope of Al aska statute and the clear intent of
the legislature. She added, "The comm ttee substitute of HB 464
continues the legislative tradition of pronoting school choice
and innovation by limting regulations which would unfairly
single out these progranms ... by holding them to a higher
standard than other public schools."”

IVB. SIMPSON added that the  bill elimnates the yearly
application not required of other types of schools. She
cont i nued:

[House Bill] 464 also <continues the |legislative
tradition of providing parental authority and | ocal
school district control by permtting prograns to set
their own guidelines for [the] purchase of materials
and [to] set their own paraneters for the nonitoring
of students by program personnel. The CS of HB 464
appropriately links the requirenments inposed on
statewi de correspondence prograns wth the schoo
accountability [|aw By this standard, statew de
correspondence prograns are very successful. For
i nstance, |ast year |DEA students had an "advanced" or
"proficient” score, which ranks them in the top half
of the 54 school districts in the state at every grade
and every subject area, higher than the state average
in nost.

As a hone schooler, [|'ve appreciated the partnership
with the school district, the input of a certified
teacher, and the guidance of IDEA in continuing to
teach ny children at hone. [House Bill] 464 sets
paraneters to foster t hat relationship wthout
stifling it, allowing for the continued success of

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -14- March 7, 2002



| DEA  and progr ans i ke it. The detai |l ed
overregul ation recently proposed would drive many
students and statew de correspondence progranms back to
home school i ng i ndependently. [House Bill] 464 allows
prograns |ike IDEA to continue to serve honme school ers
to the best of their ability and, nore inportantly, to
the best of the honme schoolers' ability.

Nunber 1770

JIM BAIRD testified via tel econference. He noted that he has
been a Fairbanks resident since 1976; he has been a secondary
teacher nmuch of that tinme; his wife is a certified elenmentary
teacher; and his two daughters have been honme schooled for five
years because he and his wfe didn't want their daughters
attending the mddle or high schools in Fairbanks. Hs famly
used the Fairbanks correspondence program for four years and
switched this year to the IDEA program M. Baird indicated his
satisfaction with the I DEA program He said:

| know from firsthand experience how high schools work
- how engaged or disengaged students are, and the
validity or lack of wvalidity of the grading system

t here. Apparently, lots of other people know too,
because now students have to pass an exam to graduate
from high school. [A] growing nunber of hone
schoolers nationwi de indicates that this is not just
an Al askan issue. Al askans have a chance to be
national |eaders in hone schooling. [ The] current

wor di ng of House Bill 464 will help this happen.

The Benchmark tests and the graduation exam
nmeasure success. W don't need help from the folks
who have regulated what they like to call the "brick-
and-nortar schools" into the fix that they are
currently in. If the aim is education, Benchmark
tests and the graduation exam are a basic, comon
nmeasur e. Let us try as many new ways as possible to
hel p our students. W know what doesn't work. Let's
get going on what wll. Pl ease adopt [the] current
wor di ng of House Bill 464 and help with its passage.

Number 1840
STACIE WARNER testified via tel econference. She urged nenbers

to adopt HB 464. She explained that her primary concern is with
the "unnecessary, increased oversight" of [hone school] parents’

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -15- March 7, 2002



teaching ability and the progress of the students. Her three
children are enrolled in the |IDEA program She indicated that
the |IDEA program personnel have inbued confidence in her
teaching ability. She said:

The Gal ena School District |DEA program has provided a
wonderful, professional, and balanced support in our
hone school i ng endeavors. | believe the bal ance that
the | DEA program has between instructional flexibility
and the trust in the parental -teacher role, conbined
with the availability of a certified teaching
assi stant, when requested by a parent, is a wonderfu

bal ance for a ... honme school or correspondence study
program | believe that any further requirenent above
the ... annual i ndependent | earning program approved
by a certified teacher - two progress reports, one
m d-year and year-end, on top of the Terra Nova and
Benchmark tests - are sufficient to nonitor and

supervi se the progress of ny children's [education].

M5. WARNER noted that students in a traditional public school
may have two nore quarterly reports; their classroom teacher is
responsible for nonitoring daily progress. She nonitors her
children's daily progress, as their classroom teacher, through
the reports and required tests as well as her own records of
their progress. She expressed her opinion that the certified
teacher's role in a statew de correspondence program should be
nore akin to a principal's role, whereas she is her son's daily
t eacher. Further regulation is unnecessary to nonitor student
progress, she said; the proposed regulations are "above and
beyond" those required of traditional public school students.
She concluded by saying [the proposed regulations] would add
unnecessary expense to the correspondence study school district.

Nunber 1967

KELLY LARSON testified via teleconference in concurrence wth
Ben Philli ps. She urged nenbers to support HB 464. She said
her biggest conplaint with the proposed regulations is with the
provi sion addressing nonpartisan curriculum She told nenbers,

"I don't see what the problem is if |[|I'm purchasing the
curriculumwith nmy own noney, and ny children are scoring at or
above average. | don't see what difference it nmakes whether
it's religious or not - as long as |I'm footing the bill."™ She

added that the cost of the proposed regulations would be taken
directly fromthe students thensel ves.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -16- March 7, 2002



Nunber 2020

KATHY VANDER ZWAAG testified via tel econference. Not i ng t hat
she works for the CyberLynx program and that her daughter is
taking sone correspondence courses, she thanked the bill's
sponsors for their responsiveness to hone school parents. The
state board did not garner input from parents when creating the
proposed regul ations, she said. She furnished her opinion on
the follow ng points: the annual application is "bureaucratic
nonsense” and takes tinme from the focus of education; the
nonthly nonitoring of students is unnecessary, and Benchmark
testing is sufficient for children who have shown success in the
hone school program program [personnel] should decide the
frequency of nonitoring; and the school district should decide
[which curricula are appropriate for students].

Number 2090
GLEN BIECEL testified via tel econference. Noting that he has

two children enrolled in the IDEA program he expressed his
belief that the school would be closed down or would |ose 80

percent of its students. He represents the Alaska charter
school association and Al askans for Educational Choice, he said.
Referring to a nine-page, in-depth review of the regulations

proposed by the [State Board of Education and Early
Devel opnent], he suggested the regulations are "school -ending”

because 6,000 students wll be essentially out of a public
school, and Alaska wll have 6,000 [fewer] public school
students next vyear if these regulations are allowed to go
t hrough without the intervening support of a bill |ike HB 464.
Number 2198

G NA CREEDON testified via tel econference. She indicated that
her children are enrolled in the Connections program and that
the IDEA program has inproved Connections by virtue of the

conpetition it has provided. She said, "I think anything that
reduces the ability of the statewide prograns to conpete wth
the district prograns hurts the Kkids. ... Anything that sucks
up ny time with anything other than teaching children is likely
to cause nme eventually to quit public hone schooling.” She
poi nted out that this would cost the state $3,200 per child; if
the Galena program is curtailed, it wll <cost the state
approximately $20 million; and if every hone school fanmly
[ chooses i ndependent honme schooling], it wll cost the state
al rost $30 mllion. She explained that these famlies would

continue to teach their children at hone, but the program m ght

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -17- March 7, 2002



be [l ess effective] wthout correspondence prograns. Saying the
proposed regulations are "expensive and stupid,” she urged
menbers to pass the bill

Nunber 2247

GAYE WRIGHT testified via teleconference. She honme schools
three of her «children; they previously attended Christian
schools, but the tuition was too expensive. She offered that

the |IDEA program requires accountability through progress
reports and individual |earning plans. She said these proposed
regul ati ons have nothing to do with accountability and teaching
students, and have everything to do wth control. She
referenced comrents by Dr. MlLain at |last week's Joint Commttee
on Admnistrative Regulation Review hearing on the proposed
regul ations; she said he'd indicated that parents could use
Christian materials, but that their children would receive no
credit for classes using these materials. She offered that
children would not take classes for which they would receive no
credit. She urged nenbers to pass HB 464 [Version (.

Number 2310

CATHERI NE BI SHOP testified via teleconference in support of HB
464. An | DEA parent for three years whose child scored in the
98 [percentile] and 95 [percentile] in |language arts and math
respectively, on the Benchmark tests, she told nenbers:

| have watched this program grow from 150 students to

3,500 students. The effort that it has put into
making this program succeed is outstanding. Thi s
wonderful program is the product of years of parent-
teacher-admnistration input. It works the way it is;
it doesn't need to be fixed or changed. Thank you for
considering HB 464. Wthout its adoption, | feel that
we wll be unduly restricted and discrim nated agai nst

in our attenpts to educate our children.
Number 2343
SHARYLEE ZACHARY testified via tel econference. She said that

her famly began honme schooling ten years ago because their
daughter needed special attention that the public school was

unable to give her. They began using what is now the Alyeska
program and she'd found it confusing. Ms. Zachary said the
| DEA program has been helpful in allowng her to choose
appropriate curricula for her three daughters; it has enabled

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 18- March 7, 2002



her famly to do things with their children that otherw se they
woul dn't have been able to do. Her famly's inconme is |ow
enough to qualify for food stanps; they do not use them They
do, however, buy Christian materials with their own noney. She
i ndicated she thought religion was being taught in public
school s.

TAPE 02-20, SIDE B
Nunber 2400

M5. ZACHARY said she believes public schools are advocating
forms of witchcraft and alternative lifestyles that she does not
support. She said she teaches her children to respect all
peopl e. She urged nenbers to support HB 464.

Number 2367

DANI ELLE BACHMAN testified via tel econference. A ninth grader
enrolled in the IDEA program M. Bachnman said she'd enrolled in
| DEA three years ago after |eaving mddl e school, where she was
not receiving the education that she needed. She is taking
advanced courses, and has a 4.0 GPA She said the program is
inportant to her because it provides her with violin |essons,
advanced- | evel books, and additional time with her famly. She
expressed her belief that HB 464 will help prograns such as |DEA
provi de students opportunities to | earn and excel in the world.

Number 2328

LILLIAN CONNOR testified via teleconference. A honme school
student, she said, "Mns have just enough tinme to teach, and
shoul dn't be burdened with nore paperwork. | just took the

test, and it was so easy | got to twiddling ny thunbs while |
waited for the other people to finish. Maybe the big schools
need nore paperwork. "

Nunber 2296

M KE PRAX testified via teleconference, thanking Representative
Janes and Representative Dyson [as cosponsor] for HB 464. He
offered his belief that the bill does not go far enough, but is

a good start. He said:

| think you should do whatever you can to reduce
central control of education. ... Those of us that are
stepping out ... are finding out that the market is a
much better control of education than the state board

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -19- March 7, 2002



of education and the state regulators. Also, | think
that you should do whatever you can to reduce the
nunber of people who are involved in running state
education. That's going to save you noney in the end
- and ... do whatever you can to reduce state
spendi ng. This is a trenmendous program The
conpetition between the different cyber schools and
the different hone schooling prograns that are
available makes it fit individual needs much closer,
and you wind up with a nuch better product at nuch
| ess cost. And it is the wave of the future and you
shoul d get on board. W accept the responsibility for
raising our own children; we have the authority.
Thank you for your concern, but we don't need the
regul ati on.

CHAI R DYSON pointed out that Representative Coghill is also a
cosponsor of HB 464.

Nunmber 2246

AMY PITZER testified via teleconference. The nother of six

children, five enrolled in the IDEA program she offered that
the program allows her children additional opportunities such as

nmusi ¢ | essons. She suggested that nost hone school parents
would return to independent home schooling iif too nuch
regul ati on were inposed. She indicated Alaska is one of |east

restrictive states for home schooling.
Number 2189

SHARI LEWS testified via tel econference. A hone school parent
in the I DEA program she noted her appreciation for the freedons
afforded her in honme schooling. Saying this bill wll enable
her to educate her children the best way she can, M. Lews
encouraged passage of [Version O and agreed with the testinony
of Ms. Creedon, Ms. Sinpson, M. Phillips, and Ms. Larson.

Number 2165

LAUREN BACHVAN testified via tel econference. A seventh grader
enrolled in the IDEA program she expressed her support for HB
464. She said hone schooling works well for many famlies. She
expl ai ned:

By home schooling, | am developing into a better
student and individual, wth one-on-one enrichnent

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 20- March 7, 2002



with nmy teacher. Through | DEA we receive an all ot nent
for pursuing optinmm education. Because of this, |
weekly receive private viola |essons from an awesone
teacher who plays in the Anchorage synphony. In
addition, | am able to use new, high-quality textbooks
that ny parents have selected, tailored to ny advanced
needs. Wen selecting textbooks, it mtters not
whet her a book is secular or religious, sinply that
each book is the best in excellence ... and the nost
current academ cally. Looking at ny test scores from
Benchmarks and CAT [California Achievenent Test] tests

proves that | am progressing. Qut st andi ng educati on
is being received by nyself and other students in the
state because of correspondence schools 1ike |DEA

Pl ease do not take that away from ne.
Nunber 2116

GREG MERCHANT testified via teleconference. Stating his
concurrence with preceding wtnesses, he expressed hope that
menbers woul d pass this bill

Nunber 2104

FLOYD WRIGHT testified via teleconference, conveying his
agreenent with previous testinony. He said:

The requirenents that are being proposed ... to
maintain a certain standard, ... | think that, as nuch
as possible, those standards should be mai ntained.
There are some students that are never going to
perform well, and many of those students are being
taken out of the public schools because the parents
feel that they know their kids better and they wll be
better capable of teaching those students at hone,
one-on-one, than they wll ever get in the public
school. They may never be "A" students, but they wll
probably be better off at home school than just being
| eft behind in the public school.

And according to the way this ... regulation was being
witten, the prograns such as IDEA that | am invol ved
with would be penalized because sone students are not
neeting the state standards. Al'l across the state,
you are not holding the sane standard to the public
schools - if they don't neet up to the state standard,

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -21- March 7, 2002



well, that's okay, they're a public school. | amin
favor of House Bill 464.

Nunber 2034

AMANDA MERCHANT testified via tel econference. A ninth grader
who has been hone schooled nost of her school vyears, M.
Merchant indicated she hadn't received good grades in public
school, but is receiving higher grades in the |IDEA program Her
parents are able to choose her curriculum She said, "I hope
that you pass House Bill 464 because then it would keep hone
schooling the way it should be."

Number 2005

JENNI FER BACHVAN testified via teleconference. A honme schoo
teacher with the | DEA program she noted that her famly is able
to select curricula to neet the special needs of their children;
ot her progranms such as [Alyeska Central School] and traditiona
cl assroons have failed to do this. Hours are spent researching
a curriculum for their children that neets her famly's high
st andar ds. She offered that HB 464 helps to continue the
excellent education that IDEA is providing for her children.
She thanked nenbers for supporting Alaska's children through
this education bill

Number 1960

BARBARA MARTINEZ testified via teleconference in support of HB
464. She has six children and was a professor at the University
of Al aska Fairbanks. She indicated that her children's teachers
suggested she hone school them two of her children were far
ahead of their peers academcally, and one child was behind.
She stated that the IDEA programis a wonderful program for her
children. "I ... really want to support any kind of |egislation
t hat woul d  prevent the school board from wusing their
adm nistrative abilities to erode the freedom to home school,"
she said. She offered that noney spent on hone schooling goes,
in large part, directly to the student; very little is spent on
capital expenditures; this is wunlike district schools, she
i ntimat ed. Ms. Martinez expressed her opinion that this is a
w se expenditure of funds. She added that the ten-year
application cycle allows the prograns the stability they need

Hone school famlies spend a |Iot of noney to purchase materials
and forego incone. Progranms |ike |IDEA allow parents to choose
materials as well as offset the costs to home school famlies.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -22- March 7, 2002



Number 1860

M CHELE PFUNDT testified via teleconference. A parent-teacher
with the IDEA program she urged nenbers to pass [Version O

because it nmkes sense administratively. If the [statew de
correspondence prograns'] admnistrations are required to apply
annually, this wll result in higher costs to districts and the
state. She offered that these funds would be better utilized in
the hands of the home school famlies. This bill will give EED
adm nistrative direction. She added that EED views home schoo

prograns as "in-risk"; she expressed her belief that EED | acks a
foundation for this viewpoint.

Number 1799

DAN MELKE testified via teleconference in support of HB 464.
He and his wife honme school their two children through the |DEA
program They are pleased with the flexibility provided in the
pr ogram He offered his concurrence with other wtnesses

testinmony supporting this |egislation. He wurged nenbers to
support HB 464.

Nunber 1774

JENNI FER DELZER testified via teleconference in support of HB
464. She noted that preceding w tnesses had covered well the
i ssues of control, cost, and individual students' success. She
opposes the proposed [regulations] that address correspondence
school s, she told nenbers. Her kindergarten son has experienced
great success in the |IDEA program She said:

If the proposed regulations are intended to ensure

quality of education, then let nme assure you ... that
al | those involved in this mtter are ... in
agr eenent . | also agree that students should neet

state standards; requiring state Benchmark testing is
an appropriate way to neasure if standards are being
met .

MS. DELZER disagreed with the proposed [regulations'] neans of

attaining those [standards]. She asked:
Way should it matter what curriculum | choose to
educate ny child, ... as long as the student is
neeting state ... requirenents? What it conmes down to

for me is the taking away of ny freedom This country
was founded wupon the pursuit of freedom

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -23- March 7, 2002



Increasing ... regulation of progranms |ike |IDEA only
further chips away at those freedons which allow us to
attain the goals for which we strive.

MS. DELZER urged nenbers to support HB 464 and to not support
the [proposed regul ations]. "Allow nme the freedom to continue
to educate ny children w thout undue intrusion," she concl uded.

Nunber 1678

DEB GERMANO testified via tel econference, noting that she was a
Kenai Peni nsul a Borough School D strict board nenber but was

speaki ng on her own behal f. She offered that [Version O puts
the responsibility to approve curricula in the hands of the
| ocal district, to which she does not object. She pointed out
that she supports parental choice; one of her children attended
a charter school. She expressed concern about the perception
that public schools are unable to [neet the educational needs of
student s] . She acknow edged that there are individual schools

that are not neeting needs. She asked participants to take into
consideration the fact that school districts have many nmandates,
many unfunded. Parents who are hone schooling do not have to
deal with many of these nmandates on a daily basis. She pointed
out that capital expenses such as buildings are necessary to
serve children.

M5. GERMANO drew attention to the possible use of public funds
to lobby [if |DEA personnel requested parents to respond to HB
464] . Sonme parents she has spoken with expressed concern that
hone school students have nore opportunities through statew de
correspondence prograns than children in traditional public
schools with limted resources. She offered that the Kenai
district is unable to provide all students with private |essons
or athletic club nenberships. She encouraged nenbers to | ook at
all sides of this issue. She expressed her support for state
standards and parental choice.

Nunber 1537

JOHN PORTSCHELLER testified via teleconference. He expressed
his concern that HB 464 fails to address all the necessary
i ssues. He referred to EED s proposed regul ations as an al nost
insidious effort to extend its reach into the realm of hone
school prograns. He offered his opinion that this is not
necessary. Al aska provides an opportunity for higher quality
education for many of its students [through freedons afforded to
hone school famlies] by correspondence prograns. He offered

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 24- March 7, 2002



that the focus of discussion should be on limting the reach of
EED, he expressed his uncertainty that HB 464 addresses that

br oader problem "[House Bill] 464 does provide us with sone
excel l ent avenues of securing sone benefits to us in regard to
correspondence prograns,” he said. He reiterated the need to

address the broader problem and the failure of HB 464 to do
t hat .

Nunber 1458

M CHAEL DAMVEYER testified via teleconference in favor of the
bill. He expressed appreciation to nenbers for their support.

CHAI R DYSON pointed out that Representative Kohring is now a
cosponsor of HB 464.

Number 1434

JULI A AUBREY testified via teleconference in support of HB 464.
She expl ai ned that hone schooling provides her an opportunity to
gi ve her son one-on-one instruction that he could not receive in
the public schools. She urged nenber to pass the bill. In
response to Chair Dyson, she said she is in the |DEA program and
had become informed of this hearing through an e-mail.

CHAIR DYSON noted that [Joan Dangeli], who was present, had
i ndi cated she'd sent that e-nail.

Number 1390

HOLLY HALVERSON testified via teleconference, noting that her
children have attended traditional public schools but have
suppl emented their education with correspondence courses. Her
children have experienced varied success in state testing and
public school coursework; she said she receives no conmunication
of her daughter's failing math grades or extra help from her

daughter's teachers. She is planning to pull her daughter out
of school and enroll her in a correspondence progranm she
offered that these prograns demand nore accountability than
traditional prograns. She expressed her belief that her child

woul d have experienced nore success and would not have "slipped
t hrough the cracks” in a correspondence program

Number 1245

JOAN DANGELI cane forward to testify, noting that she is a
CyberLynx hone schooling parent.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -25- March 7, 2002



CHAI R DYSON asked if she had informed parents of the hearing.

M5. DANGELI replied that she found the bill in BASIS [the
| egislature's online Bill Action and Status Inquiry Systeni.
She'd notified honme school famlies via e-mail through a hone
school associ ation networKk. She pointed out that she initially
sent out an e-mail to receive feedback on the inpact of the
proposed regul ations; she was unable to receive information from
EED personnel until March 6. She added that the bill mght not
address all the proposed regulations such as parental grading
and hone-desi gned course restrictions. Expressing concern about
restrictions to home-designed courses because of the need for
these courses in rural Alaska, M. Dangeli said the regul ations
dictate courses such as physical education, and that living in
rural areas denmands that these courses be hone-designed due to a
| ack of resources. She offered to prepare a docunent to outline
the i npact of the regulations on hone school famlies.

MS. DANGELI noted that she'd taken her son out of public schoo
because certified teachers said he could not |earn; he' d

remai ned at preschool level for 3.5 years. She expressed her
belief that he showed nmuch nore ability at honme; she was upset
with his being certified as unable to |earn. The proposed

regulations requiring grading by a certified teacher puts
parents back in a systemin which they have little control, she
expl ai ned. The proposed regulations would nove Alaska in the
direction of Wshington State's regulations, sone of the
strictest in the nation. M. Dangeli added that upon her review
of the proposed regulations, she'd thought they |ocked a parent

into the public system - even if it's not working. She
concluded, "I was glad that | could follow ny instincts that ...
ny boy could nove forward ... with CyberLynx. And he has, wth
a nmuch harder program than the public school ever required of
him" She offered that the program demands nuch of parents, and
she expressed confusion at the need for the regulations. She

stated her support for the bill
Number 1048

CHAIR DYSON drew attention to the letter submtted to the
commttee by Ms. Dangeli.

M5. DANGELI said strong evidence supports the success of hone

school prograns; sonme children are making progress who sonetines
couldn't in the traditional public system

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 26- March 7, 2002



Nunmber 1008

KEITH SIMLA reported that he and his w fe have hone school ed

their children. He referenced a letter he'd witten that he
would submit to the committee. He expressed concern that the
bill may not address the regulation pertaining to materials and

their managenent of these materials by the district. M. Simla
indicated the transfer of materials from parents to the district

woul d be burdensone to famlies and the districts. Currently,
materials below a certain value are retained by the famlies
often these materials are reused wth other children. He
concl uded:

| appreciate the bill ... being proposed. ... Mybe

there's sonme additional things that could strengthen
it to help alleviate sone of the other concerns that
parents have with the regulations. O course, the
best thing ... would be if the departnment of education
woul d pull the regulations entirely. But absent that,
a bill such as this is definitely appreciated.

Nunmber 0897

MR. BIEGEL returned before the commttee and characterized the
regul ations as an attenpt by EED to address problens in specific
school s. Some of the hone school classroons' students are not
performng well and are participating in field trips that are
[ beyond the scope of the curriculum. He asserted that EED s
fix for this problemincludes directing that 80 percent of funds
used in the classroom will be redirected for admnistration;
renmovi ng special assistance from students in need of help and
giving it to children who are doing quite well; and reassessing
the grades given by parents by teachers at the district |evel
These "fixes" proposed by EED would be rejected in a traditional
public school setting, he suggested, and are "anti-schooling"
changes.

MR. BI EGEL expressed uncertainty about the notivation behind the
proposed regulations - whether they are a result of lack of
know edge about hone schooling or are an attenpt to elimnate
these prograns. He expressed his hope that the intent is not to
elimnate hone school programs, but offered that the result

remai ns the sane. "The board of education changes nake no
sense,” he concl uded. "They would never treat other public
school [s] this way." He referenced his witten testinony that

outlines four ways in which [statew de correspondence] schools
are shut down, and three significant changes to how the

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -27- March 7, 2002



| egi slature inplenented this law. He indicated that hone schoo
famlies would not be subject to just one person's
interpretation but subject to what they actually say. He
offered to answer any questions.

Nunmber 0616

PAVELA EBERHARDT indicated she'd received an e-mail notice of
this hearing through the Juneau hone educators' association. A
honme school teacher with two sons in the |IDEA program she
voiced her belief that EED is proposing to overregulate the
st atewi de correspondence prograns. Test scores of students in
these prograns are simlar to those of traditional public school
students. She said:

| don't believe that we should have to prove the
results of our honme schooling beyond the test scores.

The proposed regulations would cause a need ... for
the prograns to hire nore paper pushers, resulting in
|l ess noney ... going to our children. My bi ggest

concern is in the area of choosing curricul uns. I
believe it's very inportant for us, as hone schooling
parents, to have the freedom to choose the materials
that we teach our children wth.

MS. EBERHARDT reported that she'd begun researching curricula
and learning styles two years before she started hone schooling.
Over five years, she has tested and found nmaterials very well

suited to her children's learning styles. She noted that she
will continue to use these curricula because they are
successful, and she doesn't want anyone to dictate which
materials she may use. She offered that |IDEA' s teacher's

wor kshops, resource roons, curriculumfairs, and the field trips
have enhanced her honme school program She urged nenbers to
protect hone schooling from overregulation by passing HB 464
[ Version (.

CHAI R DYSON called an at-ease at 4:34 p.m [End of Tape 02-20,
Side B; no testinony is mssing.]

TAPE 02-21, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAIR DYSON called the neeting back to order at 4:35 p.m He

announced that HB 464 would held over and that the commttee
m ght hear additional public testinony on March 14.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 28- March 7, 2002



ADJ OQURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Heal t h, Education and Social Services Standing Committee neeting
was adjourned at 4:37 p.m

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -29- March 7, 2002



